
 
 
Current Planning – Planning & Development 
 
Tel:  782-640-9641 
Email: saira.shah@halifax.ca     www.halifax.ca  

 

 
 
PO Box 1749 
Halifax, Nova Scotia  
B3J 3A5    Canada 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 
TO: Chair and Members of the Design Advisory Committee 

FROM: Saira Smith, Planner II, Planning & Development 

DATE: August 9th, 2022 

SUBJECT: Case # 24315: Site Plan Approval Application for 5291 Dacosta Row, Halifax, N.S. 

Background: 
The applicant has submitted a Site Plan Approval under the Regional Centre Land Use Bylaw (LUB) for 
5291 Dacosta Row, Halifax, N.S. (PID 40848822). The proposal has been deemed compliant with the 
requirements of the LUB.  
 
The applicant is seeking a recommendation from the Design Advisory Committee on Section 390: Roof 
Edge Setbacks of Height-Exempted Building Rooftop Features, as required by the LUB. Public information 
and consultation consisted of a sign posted on the site with a website containing information on the 
proposal, in accordance with the requirements of the LUB. The public engagement period closed on June 
24, 2022, and no comments were received from the public. 
 
Existing Use: University Use  
 
Zoning: UC-1 (University and College 1) under the LUB. 
 
Proposal: The proposal before the Committee is for an addition to an existing university building for 

a research space and Gas Atomizer installation. The applicants are requesting a variation 
to the roof edge setback for height-exempt building rooftop features. The equipment 
needed for the addition cannot meet the 3 metre rear and side yard roof setback required 
in Table 8, Column 4 of the LUB.  

 
Input Requested from Design Advisory Committee: 
In accordance with the requirements of the LUB and the Terms of Reference for the Design Advisory 
Committee, the Committee is being asked to provide a recommendation to the Development Officer 
regarding the variation requirements of Part IX. The following chapter of Part IX is relevant to this proposal:  
 
 

http://www.halifax.ca/
https://cdn.halifax.ca/sites/default/files/documents/about-the-city/regional-community-planning/RegionalCentreLUB-Eff-21Nov27_0.pdf
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Chapter 1: General Variation Criteria  
Variation:  Roof Edge Setbacks of Height-
Exempted Building Rooftop Features 

390  (1) The minimum required roof edge 
setback for height-exempted building 
rooftop features, contained in Section 
103, may be varied by site plan 
approval to reduce the required 
setback. 

• (2) When considering a site plan
approval under Subsection 390(1), the
following criteria shall be met:

(a) The lot that is subject of the
proposed site plan is located
within a DD, DH, CEN-2, CEN-
1, COR, HR-2, HR-1, CLI, LI,
HRI, INS, UC-2, UC-1, DND, H,
PCF, RPK, CDD-2, or CDD-1
zone

(b) The variation is to a roof edge
that faces a side or rear lot line;

(c) The rooftop feature is designed
or buffered in such a way to
minimize its potential visual
impact.

A variation to the roof edge setback is enabled. 

This lot is located in the UC-1 zone. 

The variation would be for the roof edges facing the side 
and rear lot lines.  

The applicants have shown a roof screen with a height of 
1.5 m will be installed along the side and rear roof edge 
which will minimize the visual impact of the roof features. 
The roof features have a height of 2.7 m which means the 
features will not be entirely covered by the screen. The 
applicants have said they can not increase the roof screen 
to cover the entire features as the structural steel would 
be insufficient for a larger screen. A letter from the 
applicants explaining the roof screen limitations is 
included as Attachment C.  

Any recommendations made by the Committee will be considered by the Development Officer prior to 
approval or refusal of the Site Plan Approval application. Any changes to the building informed by the 
recommendation of the Committee must meet the requirements of the Land Use Bylaw.  

Attachments: 

Attachment A – Variation Rational Letter 
Attachment B – Full Architectural Drawings 
Attachment C – EastPoint Engineering Letter July 7, 2022 
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May 18, 2022 

HRM Planning & Development 

5251 Duke St, 3rd Floor, Suite 300 

Halifax, NS 

B3J 3S1 

Re: BPCOM-2022-03453 - DAL New Addition for Research Lab and Gas Atomizer Facility 

To whom this may concern, 

The proposed research lab addition to the existing G.H Murray Building (Zone UC-2) will contain a 

specialized piece of research equipment (Gas Atomizer) which requires a significant amount of ventilation to 

the space when in use. The size and type of rooftop Air Handling Unit (AHU) shown on the project drawings 

is required to adequately ventilate the research lab. 

Due to the limited size of the roof footprint, approx. 8m x 8.3m, and the size of the AHU itself, there is no 

way to orientate the HVAC unit such that it meets the required roof edge setback of 3m in all directions. 

During the design phase, the orientation of this AHU was selected to spread the load of the unit evenly across 

the open web steel joist roof structure while maintaining adequate roof drainage. Where this layout did not 

meet the setback requirements, an architectural roof screen was incorporated into the design in order to hide 

the rooftop equipment from the view of the public below. A visual example of this screen was provided with 

this submission for reference. Furthermore, the height of this roof screen could be increased as required to 

fully hide the AHU as necessary. 

It appears that the project design meets the three criteria listed in Subsection 390(1) to be exempt from the 

Roof Edge Setback of Height-Exempted Rooftop Features contained in Section 103. If any further 

information can be provided that would assist in the review of the site plan approval, please reach out. 

Regards, 

Drew MacDonald, EIT – Project Manager, Special Projects 

20 Duke Street, Suite 201,Bedford, NS B4A 2Z5 
www.bird.ca 
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